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Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446, and 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a), defendants
Facebook, Inc., Mark Zuckerberg, David A. Ebersman, David M. Spillane, Marc L. Andreessen,
Erskine B. Bowles, James W. Breyer, Donald E. Graham, Reed Hastings, and Peter A. Thiel,
(collectively, “Defendants”) hereby remove this case, and all claims and causes of action therein,
from the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Mateo to the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California. In support of this Notice of Removal,
Defendants set forth the following grounds for removal:

1. On or about May 23, 2012, Plaintiff Edward H. Shierry commenced a civil action in
the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Mateo, captioned Shierry v.
Facebook, Inc., et al., Case No. CIV-514172 (the “State Court Action”). True and accurate copies
of the Summons and Complaint are attached as Exhibit A.

2. Defendants have not pled, answered, or otherwise appeared in the State Court Action.

3. This Notice of Removal is being filed before the expiration of 30 days after service of
the Summons and Complaint, and is thus timely filed under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).

4. This action is within the original jurisdiction of this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1331
and 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a). The State Court Action is a putative nationwide class action brought against
Facebook, certain officers and directors of Facebook, and certain underwriters of Facebook’s May
18, 2012 initial public offering (“IPO”) on the NASDAQ stock exchange. The State Court Action
alleges violations of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”).

5. There are at least 20 cases already pending in the federal district courts that allege
claims under the Securities Act. Four are pending in the District Court for the Northern District of
California; 16 are pending in the District Court for the Southern District of New York. The four
cases in the Northern District of California have been marked as related and are pending before the
Honorable Maxine M. Chesney.
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6. On June 18, 2012, Facebook, certain of its officers and directors, and certain of the
underwriter defendants filed with the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation a Motion to Transfer
Actions to the Southern District of New York Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1407 for Coordinated and/or
Consolidated Pretrial Proceedings (the “MDL Motion™).

7. This Court has jurisdiction over this case under two federal statutes: 28 U.S.C.
§ 1331 and Section 22(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a). This case is therefore removable
under 28 U.S.C. § 1441. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a), “[e]xcept as otherwise expressly provided by
Act of Congress, any civil action brought in a State court of which the district courts of the United
States have original jurisdiction, may be removed ... to the district court of the United States ...
embracing the place where such action is pending.”

Section 22(a) Provides Exclusive Federal Jurisdiction Over Securities Act

Claims Involving “Covered Class Actions.”

8. Section 22(a) is the jurisdictional provision of the Securities Act. As originally
written, Section 22(a) provided for concurrent jurisdiction between state and federal courts over
Securities Act claims. 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a) (1933). The Securities Litigation Uniform Standards Act
of 1998 (“SLUSA”), 15 U.S.C. § 77p(c), amended Section 22(a) to provide that there will be some
claims or cases brought under the Securities Act over which a state court will no longer have

concurrent jurisdiction:

The district courts of the United States ... shall have jurisdiction of offenses and
violations under this subchapter and under the rules and regulations promulgated by
the Commission in respect thereto, and, concurrent with State and Territorial courts,
except as provided in [Section 16] of this title with respect to covered class actions,
of all suits in equity and actions at law brought to enforce any liability or duty created
by this subchapter.

15 U.S.C. § 77v(a) (emphasis added to SLUSA amendments). As amended, Section 22(a) deprives
state courts of concurrent jurisdiction over “covered class actions” that raise Securities Act claims.
See Knox v. Agria Corp., 613 F. Supp. 2d 419, 425 (S.D.N.Y. 2009); see also In re Fannie Mae
2008 Sec. Litig., No. 08 Civ. 7831, 2009 WL 4067266, at *2 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 24, 2009); Rovner v.
Vonage Holdings Corp., No. 07-178, 2007 WL 446658, at *3-4 (D.N.J. Feb. 7, 2007).

9. Section 16(f) defines “covered class actions” as including

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF STATE 2
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any single lawsuit in which ... one or more named parties seek to recover damages on
a representative basis on behalf of themselves and other unnamed parties similarly
situated, and questions of law or fact common to those persons or members of the
prospective class predominate over any questions affecting only individual persons or
members.

15 US.C. § 77p(D(2)(A)()(II). Plaintiff is a named party seeking to recover damages on a
representative basis on behalf of himself and other unnamed parties similarly situated, and common
questions of law or fact allegedly 'predominate over individual questions. (See Exhibit A.) Plaintiff
also is bringing claims under the Securities Act. This action therefore is a “covered class action”
within the meaning of Section 16. Accordingly, state courts do not have jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s
putative class action. Federal courts alone have jurisdiction to hear Plaintiff’s putative class action
claims under the Securities Act. See Knox, 613 F. Supp. 2d at 423. |

Section 22(a)’s Removal Ban Does Not Apply.

10. Section 22(a) of the Securities Act also includes an anti-removal provision, which
originally prohibited the removal of any Securities Act cases that were broughtv in state court. As
amended by SLUSA, however, Section 22(a) now provides as follows: “[e]xcept as provided in
section [16(c)] of [the Securities Act], no case arising under [the Securities Act] and brought in any -
State court of competent jurisdiction shall be removed to any court of the United States.” 15 U.S.C.
§ 77v(a) (italics added to SLUSA amendments; underscoring added). This anti-removal provision
does not apply here for two independent reasons.

11.  The first is that Section 22(a)’s anti-removal provision only prohibits the removal of
cases brought in a “State court of competent jurisdiction.” 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a). As discussed above,
state courts no longer have jurisdiction to adjudicate a “covered class action” raising Securities Act
claims and are therefore no longer courts of competent jurisdiction with respect to such claims. See
Knox, 613 F. Supp. 2d at 423. Accordingly, Section 22(a)’s anti-removal provision does not apply
to this action. See id. at 425.

12.  The Court need not reach the second reason why Section 22(a)’s anti-removal
provision does not apply, which is supplied by Section 16(c). Section 16(c) allows the removal of
“[a]ny covered class action brought in any State court involving a covered security, as set forth in
subsection (b),” 15 U.S.C. § 77p(c), which subsection “makes some state-law claims nonactionable

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF STATE 3
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through the class-action device in federal as well as state court.” Kircher v. Putnam Funds Trust,
547 U.S. 633, 637, n.1 (2006) (discussing Section 16(b), 15 U.S.C. § 77p(b)). District courts are
divided on the question whether Section 16(c) provides a basis for removing covered class actions
that raise only federal claims under the Securities Act. Some courts have interpreted Section 16(c)
to allow the removal of “covered class actions™ raising either state law claims or Securities Act
claims. See, e.g., Rubin v. Pixelplus Co., No. 06 Civ. 2964, 2007 WL 778485, at *3-4 (E.D.N.Y.
Mar. 13, 2007); Brody v. Homestore, Inc., 240 F. Supp. 2d 1122, 1123-24 (C.D. Cal. 2003). Other
courts, however, have interpreted Section 16(c) as permitting removal of “only those ‘covered class
actions’ described in § 77p(b) alleging omission or deception based upon state law ....” Young v.
Pacific Biosciences of Cal., Inc., No. 11-cv-5668,2012 WL 851509, at *3-4 (N.D. Cal. Mar. 13,
2012); see also West Virginia Laborers Trust Fund v. STEC Inc., No. SACV 11-01171, 2011 WL
6156945, at *4 (C.D. Cal. Oct. 7, 2011) (discussing the different interpretations and holding that
“subsection (c) only allows for removal of actions based on state law”).'

13.  In any event, the Court need not address this division of authority over the scope of
Section 16(c)’s exception to Section 22(a)’s anti-removal provision. That is because the logically
prior question — which Young did not address — is whether Section 22(a)’s anti-removal provision
applies to this case in the first instance. It does not. As discussed supra, Section 22(a) prohibits
removal only of cases over which the state courts have “competent jurisdiction.” Because the state
court had no jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s “covered class action,” as the result of SLUSA, Section
22(a)’s anti-removal provision does not apply and does not prohibit removal of this case. Removal

is thus proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1441.

! Luther v. Countrywide Home Loans Servicing LP, 533 F.3d 1031, 1032 (9th Cir. 2008), is
inapposite. In Luther, the Ninth Circuit held that “the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005, which
permits in general the removal to federal court of high-dollar class actions involving diverse parties,
does not supersede § 22(a)’s specific bar against removal of cases arising under the [Securities] Act.”
The court did not address whether the SLUSA amendments to Section 22(a) strip state courts of
jurisdiction over class actions raising claims under the Securities Act. Nor did the court have
occasion to address whether the SLUSA amendments to Section 22(a) create an exception to Section
22(a)’s anti-removal provision because the parties agreed that the mortgage pass-through certificates
at issue were not “covered securities.” Id at 1033 n.1; ¢f. Madden v. Cowen & Co., 576 F.3d 957,
965 (9th Cir. 2009) (observing in the context of a removed state-law action that “any suit removable
under SLUSA’s removal provision, § 77p(c), is precluded under SLUSA’s preclusion provision,
§ 77p(b), and any suit not precluded is not removable”).

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF STATE 4
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14, Defendants will promptly serve a copy of this Notice on counsel for Plaintiff and will
file a copy of this Notice with the Clerk of the Superior Court of the State of California for the
County of San Mateo, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d).

15.  Undersigned counsel. certify that all of the defendants in this action consent to
removal.

CONCLUSION

16. 'WHEREFORE, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446, and 15 US.C. §
77v(a), Defendants remove this action in its entirety from the Superior Court of the State of
California, County of San Mateo, to the United States District Court for the Northern District of

California, San Francisco Division.

DATED: June 20, 2012

Andrew B. Clubok (pro h ice forth ing) James F. Basile
rew B. Clubok (pro hac vice forthcoming :
Brant W. Bishop, P.C. (pro hac vice forthcoming) IElllzabetXI\I;b eeE yLIS ;

KI AND & ELLIS LLP 555 California Street

601 Lexington Avenue San Francisco, CA 94104
New York, NY 10022 Telephone: (415) 439-1400
Telephone: (212) 446-4800 Facsimile: (415)439-1500

Facsimile: (212) 446-49500

Richard D. Bernstein

Tariq Mundiya

Todd G. Cosenza

WILLKIE FARR & GALLAGHER LLP
787 Seventh Avenue

New York, N.Y. 10019-6099, U.S.A.
Telephone: (212) 728-8000

Facsimile: (212) 728-8111

Counsel for Facebook, Inc., Mark Zuckerberg, David A. Ebersman, David M. Spillane, Marc L.
Andreessen, Erskine B. Bowles, James W. Breyer, Donald E. Graham, Reed Hastings and
Peter A. Thiel
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over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is 555 California Street

o I

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Patrick Postolka, am employed in the County of San Francisco, State of California. I am

b

San Francisco, California 94104.

On June 20, 2012, T served a copy of the following document(s) described as:
NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF STATE COURT CIVIL ACTION

on the interested parties in this action as follows:

O

By Facsimile

By transmitting via facsimile, the document(s) listed above to the fax number set forth below
on this date before 5:00 p.m. I am aware that service is presumed invalid unless the
transmission machine properly issues a transmission report stating the transmission is
complete and without error.

By U.S. Mail

By placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon fully
prepaid, in the United States mail at San Francisco, California, to the addressee(s) set forth
below.

I am “readily familiar” with the firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence
for mailing. Under that practice, it would be deposited with the U.S. postal service on that
same day with postage thereon fully prepaid at San Francisco, California in the ordinary
course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party served, service is presumed
invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is more than one day after date of
deposit for mailing.

By Overnight Mail

By causing the document(s) listed above to be delivered to the addressee(s) set forth below
on the following business morning by Federal Express Corporation or Express Mail.

By Personal or Messenger Service

By causing the document(s) listed above to be personally served in such envelope by hand to
the person at the address(s) set forth below:

See Attached Service List

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on June 20, 2012, at San Francisco, California.

Patrick Postolka

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 1
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SERVICE LIST

Frank J. Johnson

David Elliot

JOHNSON & WEAVER, LLP
110 West “A” Street, Suite 750
San Diego, California 92101
Telephone: 619-230-0063
Facsimile: 619-255-1856

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Co-Lead Class
Counsel

Stephen R. Basser

Samuel M. Ward

BARRACK, RODOS & BACINE
One America Plaza

600 West Broadway, Suite 900
San Diego, California 92101
Telephone: 619-230-0800
Facsimile: 619-230-1874

Co-Lead Class Counsel

Lionel Z. Glancy

Michael Goldberg

Robert V. Prongay

Casey E. Sadler

GLANCY BINKOW & GOLDBERG LLP
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100

Los Angeles, California 90067

Telephone: 310-201-9150

Facsimile: 310-201-9160

Co-Lead Class Counsel

Neal A. Potischman

Samantha H. Knox

DAVIS POLK & WARDWELL LLP
1600 El Camino Real

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Telephone: (650) 752-2000
Facsimile: (650) 752-2111

Attorneys for Defendants Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co., Barclays Capital

Inc., Allen & Company LLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Blaylock Robert Van LLC, BMO
Capital Markets Corp., C.L. King & Associates, Inc., Cabrera Capital Markets, LLC, Castleoak
Securities, L.P., Cowen and Company, LLC., E*Trade Securities, LLC, Itau BBA USA Securities,
Inc., Lazard Capital Markets LLC, Lebenthal & Co., LLC, Loop Capital Markets LLC, M.R. Beal &
Company, Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc., Muriel Siebert & Co., Inc., Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.,
Pacific Crest Securities LLC, Piper Jaffray & Co., Raymond James & Associates, Inc., Samuel A.

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Ramirez & Company, Inc., Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, The Williams Capital

Group, L.P., and William Blair & Company, L.L.C.,

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
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SHORT TITLE:
| Shierry v. Facebook, ¢t. al.

CASE NUADER®

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE

- This form may be used as an altachment io any summons if space does nol peomil the listing of all parties on the summons.
- i this altachment is used, Insort the following stalement in the plaintiif or dofendant box en the summons: “Addillonal Pariles
Allachment fom is allached.”

List uddltlonal parties (Check anly one box. Use a separels page for each lype of perly.).

O Plainu!! (13 oefendant [ ] Cross-Compleinant [ Cross-Defondant .

MARK ZUCKERBERG, DAVID B. EBERSMAN, DAVID M. SPILLANE, MARC L, ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALD E. GRAHAM, RBED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC,,
ALLEN & COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES
(USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKI‘.TS LLC, BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP C.L.KING & ASSOCIATES, INC,,

CABRERA CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES L.p., COWEN AND COMPANY,
LLC., E*TRADE SECURITIES, LLC, ITAU BBA USA SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBENTBAL & CO., LLC, LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL &
COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC., MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC., OPPENHEIMER &
CO. INC,, PACIFIC CREST SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFPRAY & CO., RAYMOND JAMES &
ASSOCIATES, INC,, SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC,, STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR & COMPANY,

LLC,
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NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: ’ L
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): E;\- :?33%0 FILED
FACEBOOQK, INC,, COUNTY
MAY 2 5 2012

" YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
{LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):

Clork of th sm "
EDWARD J. SHIERRY, Individually and On Behalf of All Others BY—-’%@
Similarly Sinrated o

i A;J?TICEI You.have been sued, The-courl may decide agains! you wilhout yourbeing lieard ualess you:respond vithin 30 days. Read the Information

Blovs.

You havo 30 CALENDAR OAYS after this summons and tegal papers ate served on you 1o 66 3 vrition response ot this cowt and have a copy
sorved on tho plainliif. A lellar or phona cal il not prolect you. Your vrrition rosponsc must b In proper legel form if you want tho court to hesr your
case. These moy be a count form {hel you can use for your responso. You can find these court forms and more infoimation at the California Courts
Oniine Solf-Holp Center (wanv.courtinjo.ca.gov/scilheip). your county 1av: library. of the courthouss nosrest you. If you canpnot pay ihe filing fee. ask
tho court clerk for @ fee vialver lorm. If you do not file your tasponse on limo, you may lose the case by default, and your vsnges, money. end property
may bo laken without furthes v/arning from the cour. :

There are oiner lega) requiroments. You may viant to call an allorney right away. If you do not knoiv an allorney, yo may vzeni {o call an atlomey
relerra) semvice. If you cannol afford an allorncy, you may ba eligible for iree legal services from 2 nonprofit legal services progrem. You can focate
thase nonprofil groups at the California Lega! Services Wob sle {invw.lawhelpcalliornis.org), the Californie Courls Online Seif-Help Contor
{wwv.courlinia, ca.govsselihalp), of by contacting your local courl or county bar associgtion. NOTE: The count has a stalulory fen for walved fees and
costs on eny selllement or orbilration avsard of $10.000 or mare in 8 civil case. The court's llon must be pald belore the court v/l dismiss the case.
JAVISO/ L'g han demandeda. Sino responde denlro da 30 dfas. fa code puedo decidir on su ¢onira sin escuchar su versidn, Los fa Informacién a
conlinuacién, .

Tisne 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que fe anlroguen esls cllocidn.y papeles leyales para presentar una respuesla por oscrilo en osle
cordo y hacor que s8 eniregue una capia o! demendanis. Una corlo o una flameda tsieldnica no lo prolegen. Su raspuesia por oscilo lene que eslar

en lormalo legel correcio s/ desea qua procesen su ceso on le corle. Es posible que hays un fomulano que usted puodo user para su respuesta,
Pueds anconlrar esios formulaios dé I corte y més informacién en ol Conliro de Ayuds dg las Corles de Colifomio (vrwi.sucorle.ca.gov), enla
blblioleca de layes ds su condado o en fa corle que lo quéede mdés cercs. Si no puode pagar la cuola da presenltacitn. plds el secrolano do (g corle
que Jo d8 un formulario de exencidn de pago do cuolss. Sl no presenla su respuesla a liempo. pusda parder of ceso por incumplimisnlo y ia corle e
podiéd quilar su sueldo, dinoro y bienes sin mds advertencla.

Hay olros roquisitos legeles. Es racomondablo que llame o un ahogado inmediatamenlo. SI no conoce a un obogado. puede Remsr 8 un serviclo de
remisién a abogedos. Sl no puede pager a un abogoado. es posile que cumiplo con los requisilos para oblener servicios legolos graluilos de un
programa dg serviclos logales sin fines de fucro. Puede encanlrer esios grupos sin fines de lucro en ef sillo web de Calilornlz Legal Sorvices.
&nvrvisehelpcalifoinia.org), en e Centro ds Ayudo do iss Gortes de Calilomla, Vwnz.sucone.cd.gov) o ponlénduse en conlacto con e cade 0 el
cofegio de abogoados ocales. AVISO: Por fsy. le corle liene derecho e reciamat [as cuolas y los coslos exenios por Imponer un gravemen sobre
cunlquler recuporocion do $10,000 6 més de velor rocibie medianio un acuordo o una concoskdn de srbliraje an un case de derecho civil. Tons quo
pager of gravamon do 12 corle antes dg que 18 0ore pusdd desechér el caso.

The name and addfess of the court is: CASE HUYD2RY) .

(E1 nombre ;dIreCdén de la corte es): San Mateo Superior Court """""”@*’V 5 1 4 l 7 o
Hall of Justice, 400 County Center ’

Redwood City, CA 94063 .

The name, address, and lelephone number of plainllifs allorney, or pialntill without an atlomey. is:
(E1 nombre, Ia direccidn y el nimero de lelélono del abogado del demandante, o del demandanie qie no lisne abogado, os):

Frank Johnson, Johnson & Weaver, 110 West A Strect, Suite 750, San Diego, CA 92101 (619) 230-0063
DATE: WA 952012 JOUN C. FTTOMex, vy G. MARQUEZ , Dopuly

(Fecha) {Secretano) (Adjunto)
{For proof of sarvice of this summons, usa Prool of Service of Summons (form POS.010}.)
(Para pruaba dg onlrega do osla cilalién use ef formulano Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).
. NOTICE YO THE PERSON SERVED: You are Served
weAd 1. ] es anindividual defendant.
2. [ asthe person sued under lhe ficiious name of (specify):

3. [ onvehat of (specity):

under: L] CCP 418.10 {corporation) [] CCP 416.60 (minor)
[ ccP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [_] CCP 418.70 (conservalee)
[C] CCP 416.40 {association o parinership) [ ] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)
3 other (specity): .
4. [ by personal delivery on (alo):
Pagr 1919

Forma Adopied for Mandstory Usy SUMMONS Coda of Ciwd Procedvra §§ 412 20, 483
Juficin Counol o} Cakdera's
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SUM-200(A)

—SHOR'; TITLE: CASE HUMBER'
Shierry v. Facebook, ct. al.

INSYRUCYIONS FOR USE
-9 This form may be used as an atlachment to any summons if space daes not parmit the listing of afl parties on lhe summons.
- 1l this altachment Is used, insert the following statement in the plainliff or dofendant box on the summons: “Addifional Parties
Atlachment form Is attachad.”

List additional partles (Chack only ona box. Use a separals pago for each lype ol parly.):

] Praintift Defendant [ ] Cross-Compleinant [ Cross-Delondant

MARK ZUCKERBERG, DAVID E. EBERSMAN, DAVID M. SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
TINEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC.,
ALLEN & COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS TNC., CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES
(USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC, BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP.,, C.L. KING & ASSOCIATES, INC.,
CABRERA CAPITAL MARKRETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES, L.P., COWEN AND COMPANY,
LLC., E*TRADE SECURITIES, LLC, ITAU BBA USA SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBENTHAL & CO., LLC, LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL &
COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC,, MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC., OPPENHEIMER &
CO. INC., PACIFIC CREST SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY & CO., RAYMOND JAMES &
ASSOCIATES, INC.,, SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC., STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR & COMPANY,
L.L.C,
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JOHNSON & WEAVER, LLP
Frank J. Johnson (174882)
David Elliot (270831)

110 West “A” Street, Suite 750
Sun Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 230-0063
Facsiniile: (619) 255-1856

Attorneys (or Plaintiff

ENDORSED FILED
SAN MATEO COUNTY

MAY 2 5 2012

g;etk of "3:3_)@&5&"“

SUPLERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO

Case No.: le 5 l 44 1 72

EDWARD J. SHIERRY, Individually and
On Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK
ZUCKERBERG, DAVID E. EBERSMAN,
DAVID M, SPILLANE, MARC L.
ANDREESSEN, ERSKINE B. BOWLES,
JAMES W, BREYER, DONAIDE.
GRAI1AM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEIL.,, MORGAN STANLEY & CO.
L.LC, GOIL.DMAN, SACIIS & CO.,,
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., AILLEN &
COMPANY LI.C, CITIGROUP GLOBALI,
MARKETS INC,, CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LI.C, DEUTSCHE
BANK SECURITIES INC,, RBC
CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC, BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LI.C, BMO CAPITAL
MARKETS CORP,, C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRFRA
CAPITAL MARKETS, LI1.C,
CASTLEOAK SECURITIES, L.P,,
COWEN AND COMPANY, 1LLC,,
E*TRADE SECURITIES, LLC, ITAU
BBA USA SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD
CAPITAL MARKETS LLC,
LEBENTHAL & CO.,LLC, LOOP
CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL
& COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL
(USA) INC,, MURIEL SIEBERT & CO.,
INC., OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC.,
PACIFIC CREST SECURITIES LLC,
PIPER JAFFRAY & CO., RAYMOND

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Class Action Complaimt

Xvd A2 3114
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JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC., SAMUEL
A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC,,
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS
CAPITAL GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM
BLAIR & COMPANY, L.L.C,,

Defendants.

Class Action Complaint




£ WN

(=2

1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

00 3 O

Plaintiff EDWARD J. SHIERRY (“Plaintiff”), by and through his attorneys, alleges the
following upon information and belicf, except as to thosc allcgations concerning Plaintiff,
which are alleged upon personal knowledge. Plaintiff's information and belicf is based upon,
among other things, his counsel’s investigation, which includes without limitation: (a) review
and analysis of regulatory filings made by Facebook, Inc. (“Facebook” or the “Company”)

with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”); (b) review and analysis

- of press releases and media reports issued and disseminated by Facebook; and (c) review of

other publicly available information concerning Facebook.

NATURE AND SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1. This is a class action on behalf of persons and/or cntities who purchased or
otherwise acquired the common stock of Facebook pursuant to and/or traccablc to the
Company'’s initial public offering (the “IPO” or the “Offering”).

2. Facebook operates as a social networking company worldwide.

3. The claims in this action arise from the materially falsc and/or misleading
Registration Statement and Prospcctus issued in conncction with the Offering. In the IPO, the
Company offcred for sale 421,233,615 shares of common stock at a price of $38.00 per share,
of which 180,000,000 shares of Class A common stock were offercd by the Company and
241,233,615 shares of Class A common stock were offered by existing stockholders.
According to the Company, Facebook expects to reccive net proceeds of approximately
$6,764,760,000 and selling stockholders expect to receive $9,066,041,719 from the Offcring,
afier deducting underwriting discounts, commissions and offcring related transaction costs.

4, As detailed bclow, the Registration Statement and Prospectus contained
materially falsc and misleading statemcnts and omitted material information in violation of
Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§77k and
770.

-
Class Action Complaint
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 11 and 15 of
the Securities Act. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant
to Section 22 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §77v, which explicitly statcs that “except as
provided in scction 16(c), no case arising under this title and brought in any State court of
competent jurisdiction shall be rcmoved to any court in the United States.” Section 16(c) of
the Securities Act refers 1o “covered class actions,” which are defincd as fawsuits brought as |
class actions or brought on behalf of more than 50 persons asserting claims under state or
common law. This is an action asserting federal law claims. Thus, it does not fall within the
definition of a “covered class action” under §16(c) and therefore is not removable to federal
court under the Sccurities Litigation Uniform Standards Act of 1998.

6. Each defendant has sufficient contacts with California, or otherwise
purposefully avail itself of benefits from California or has property in California so as to
render the exercise of jurisdiction over each by the California courts consistent with traditional
notions of fair play and substantial justice.

7. The amount in controversy cxceeds the jurisdictional minimum of’ this Coutt,
and the total damages sought exceeds $25,000.

8. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Section 22 of the Securitics Act, 15
U.S.C. §77v. Defendant Facebook’s principal executive offices arc located within this
County, the individual defendants conduct business in this County, and many of the acts and
transactions alleged hcrein, including the preparation and dissemination of materially falsc
and/or misleading information, occurred in substantial part in this County.

PARTIES

9. Plaintiff Edward J. Shierry purchased Faccbook securities pursuant to and/or
traceable to the Registration Statement issucd in connection with the Company’s IPO and has

been damaged thereby.

Class Action Complaint
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10.  Defendunt Facebook is a Delaware corporation with its principal executive
offices at 1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, California 94025.

I1.  Dcfendant Mark Znckerberg (“Zuckerberg”) was, at all relevant times,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of Facebook and signed or authorized the
signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC.

12.  Defendant David A. Ebersman (“Ebersnian”) was, at all relevant times, Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”) of Faccbook and signed or authorized the signing of the Conipany’s
Registration Statemcnt filed with the SEC.

13.  Defendant David M. Spillane (“Spillane”) was, at all relevant limés, Director of
Accounting for Faccbook and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration
Statement filed with the SEC.

14.  Defendant Marc L. Andreessen (“Andrecssen”) was, at all relcvant times, a
director of Facebook and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration
h Statemeut filed with the SEC.
| 15.  Defendant Erskine B. Bowles (“Bowlcs™) was, at all rclevant times, a director
of Facebook and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement
filed with the SEC.

16.  Defendant James W. Breyer (“Breyer”) was, at all relcvant times, a director of

Facebook and signed or authorized the siguing of the Compauny’s Registration Statement filed

Il with the SIEC.
17.  Defendant Donald E. Grahami (“Grahan™) was, at all rclevant times, a director
of Facebook and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Stateinent

filed with the SEC.

3
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18, Defendant Reed Hastings (“Hastiﬁgs”) was, at all rclevant times, a dircctor of
Faccbook and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed
with the SEC.

19.  Defendant Peter A, Thiel (“Thicl”) was, at all relevant times, a director of
Facebook and signed or authorized the signing of thec Company’s Registration Statement filed
with the SEC.

20. Defendants Zuckerberg, Ebcrsman, Spillane, Andreessen, Bowles, Breyer,
Graham, Hastings and Thiel, are collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Individual
Dcfendants.”

2].  Defendant Morgan Stanlcy & Co. LLC (“Morgan Stanley”) scrved as an
underwriter to Faccbook in connection with the Offcring,

22. Defendant Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“Goldman Sachs”) scrved as an underwriter
to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

23.  Defendant Barclays Capital Inc. (“Barclays”) served as an underwriter to
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

24.  Decfendant Allen & Company LLC (*Allen”) served as an underwriter to
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

25.  Defendant Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (“Citi’’) served as an underwritcr to
Faccbook in conncction with the Offering.

26.  Defendant Credit Suissc Securities (USA) LLC (“Credit Suisse™) scrved as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

27. Defendant Deutsche Bank Sccurities Inc: (*“Deutsche”) served as an underwriter

to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

Class Action Complaint
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28.  Defendant RBC Capital Markets, LLC (“RBC”) served as an underwriter {o
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

29.  Defendant Blaylock Robert Van LL.C (“Blaylock™) served as an underwriter to
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

30. Defendant BMO Capital Markets Corp. (“BMO”) served as an underwriter {o
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

31.  Defendant C.L. King & Associates, Inc. (“C.L. King™) served as an underwriter
1o Facebook in connection with the Offering.

32.  Defendant Cabrera Capital Markets, LLC (“Cabrcra”™) served as an underwriter
to I'acebook in connection with the Offering.

33.  Defendant CastleOak Securities, L.P. (“CastleOak”) scrved as an underwriter to

Facebook in connection with the Offering.

34.  Defendant Cowen and Company, LLC (“Cowen™) served as an underwriter to
F aceboc.>k in connection with the Offering.

35.  Defendant E*TRADE Securities LLC (“IE*TRADE”) served as an underwriter
| to Facebook in connection with the Offering. !

36. Defendant Itau BBA USA Securities, Inc. (“Itau”) served as an underwriter to
Facebook in conncction with the Offering.

37.  Defendant Lazard Capital Markets LLC (“Lazard”) served as an underwriter to
Facebook in connection with the Offering.

38.  Dcfendant Lebenthal & Co., LLC (“Lebenthal”) served as an undcrwriter to
Facébook in connection with the Offering.

39.  Defendant Loop Capital Markets LLC (“Loop™) served as an underwriter to

Facebook in connection with the Offering.

S
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40.  Defendant M.R. Beal & Company (“M.R. Beal”) served as an underwriter o
Faccbook in connection with the Offering.

41.  Defendant Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc. (“Macquarie”) served as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

42.  Defendant Muriel Siebert & Co., Inc. (“Muriel”) served as an underwriter (o
Facebook in conncction with the Offering,

43.  Defendant Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. (“Oppenheimer”) served as an underwriter
to Facebook in conncction with the Offering. |

44.. Defendant Pacific Crest Securities LLC (“Pacific Crest”) served as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

45.  Dcfendant Piper Jafiray & Co. (“Piper JafTray™) served as an undcrwriter to
Facebook in connection with the Offcring.

46.  Defendant Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (*Raymond James”) served as
an undcrwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

47.  Defendant Samuel A. Ramirez & Company,. Inc, (“Ramirez”) served as an
underwriter to Faccbook in conncction with the Offering.

48.  Defendant Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (“Stilel”) served as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

49.  Defendant- The Williams Capital Group, L.P. (“Williams”) served as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

50. Defendants William Blair & Company, L.L.C. (*William Blair”) served as an
underwriter to Facebook in connection with the Offering.

51, | Defendants Morgan Stanley, Goldman Sachs, Barclays, Allen, Citigroup, Credit

Suisse, Deutsche, RBC, Blaylock, BMO, C.L. King, Cabrera, CastleOak, Cowen, E*TRADE,

6
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Itan, Lazard, Lebenthal, Loop, M.R. Beal, Macquarie, Muricl, Oppenheimer, Pacific Crest,
Piper Jaffray, Raymond James, Ramirez, Stifel, Williams, and William Blair, are collectively
referred to herein as the “Underwriter Defendants.”

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

52.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action purstiant to California Code of Civil

Proceditre Section 382 on behalf of a Class, consisting of all persons and/or entities who |

purchased or otherwise acquired the common stock of Facebook pursnant to and/or traceable
to the Company’s false and/or misleading Registration Statcment and Prospectns issned in
connection with the Company’s 1PO, and who were damaged thereby (the “Class”). Exclnded
from the Class arc defendants hercin, members of the immcdiate tamily of each of the
defendants, any person, firm, trust, corporation, officer, director or other individual or entity in
which any defendant has a controlling interest or which is related to or affiliated with any of
the defendants, and the legal representatives, agents, affiliates, heirs, successors-in-interest or
assigns of any snch excluded party.

53.  The members of the Class arc so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. Facebook sold more than 421 million shares of common stock in the IPO. The
precisc number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time but is believed to be in
the thoutsands. In addition, the names and addresses of the Class members can be ascertained
from the books and records of Facebbok or its transfer agent or the nnderwriters to the 1PO.
Notice can be provided to such rccord owners by a combination of published notice and first-
class mail, nsing techniques and a-form of notice similar to those customarily nscd in class
actions arising under the federal securities laws.

54.  Plaintiff will fairly and adeqnatcly represent and protect the interests of the

members of the Class. Plaintiff has retained competent connsel expericnced in class action

Class Action Complaint
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litigation under the sccurities laws to further ensurc such protection and intends to prosecute
this action vigorously.

55.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of thc other members of the Class
because plaintiff and all the Class members® damages arisc from and were causcd by the same
false and misleading reprcscntations and omissions made by or chargeable to defendants.
Plaintiff does not have any interests antagonistic to, or in conflict with, the Class.

56. A class action is superior to othcr available mcthods for the fair and cificient
adjudication of this controversy. Since the damages suffered by individual Class members
may be relatively small, the cxpense and burden of individual litigation make it virtually
impossiblc for the Class members to seek redress for the wrongful conduct alleged. Plaintiff
knows of no difficulty that will bc encountered in the management of this litigation that would
precludc its maintenancc as a class action.

57. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions affccting solely individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the Class arc:

(a) whether the fedcral securities laws were violatcd by defendants® acts as
allcgcd' herein;

(b) whether the Prospectus and Registration Statement issucd by defendants to
the investing public in connection with the TPO ncgligently omitted and/or inistcpresented
material facts about Facebook and its business; and

(c) the extent of injurics sustained by members of the Class and thc

appropriate measurc of damages.

Class Action Complaint
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

58.  Defendant Facebook operates as a social networking company worldwide. The
Company: (i) builds tools that enable users to connect, sharc, discover, and communicate with
each other; (ii) enables developers to build social applications on Facebook or to integrate their
websites with Facebook; and (iii) offers products that enable advertisers and marketers to
engage with its users. As of February 2, 2012, it had 845 million monthly users and 443
million daily users.

59.  On or about May 16, 2012, Facebook filcd with the Sccurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) a Form S-1/A Registration Statement (thc “Registration Statement”), for
the IPO.

60.  On or about May 18, 2012, the Prospcctus (the “Prospectus”) with respeet to
the IPO, which forms part of thc Registration Statement, beccame effective and 421 million
shares of Facebook common stock were sold to the public at $38 per share, thereby valuing the
total size of the IPO at more than $16 billion. |

61.  The Registration Statement and Prospectus contained untrue statements of
material facts, omitted to state other facts necessury to make the statements made not
misleading and were not prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations governing their
preparation.

62.  With rcgard to the Company’s'expectations for the second quarter of 2012, the
Registration Statement and Prospectus stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

Bascd upon our experience in the second quarter of 2012 to date, the trend we

saw in the first quartcr of [daily activc users] incrcasing more rapidly than the

increase in number of ads delivered has continucd. We belicve this trend is

driven in part by increascd usage of faccbook on mobile devices where we have

only reccntly begun showing an immaterial number of sponsored stories in

News I'ecd, and in part duc to certain pages having fewer ads per page as a
result of product decisions.
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63.  In dcscribing the risks related to Facebook’s business and industry, the
Registration Statcment purported to warn that the Company’s revenues could be negatively
affected by the rate of growth in mobile users of its site or app. The Registration Statement
and Prospéctué stated in pertinent part as follows:

Growth in use of Facebook through onr mobile products, where our ability to
tonelize is nuproven, as a substitute for use on personal computers may
negatively.affect our revenne and financial resuls.

We had 488 million [monthly active users] who used facebook mobile
products in March 2012. While most of our mobile users also acccss Facebook
through personal computers, we anticipate that the rate of growth in mobile
usage will exceed the growth in usage through personal computers for the
foreseeable future, in part due to our focus on developing mobile products to
encourage mobilc usage of Facebook. We have historically not shown ads to
users accessing Facebook through mobile apps or our mobile website. In March
2012, we began to includc sponsored stories in users’ mobile News Fceds.
However, we do not currently directly generate any meaningful revenuc from
the use of Facebook mobile products, and our ability to do so succcssfully is
unproven. We believe this incrcased usage of Facebook on mobilc devices has
contributed to the recent trend of our daily active users (DAUs) increasing more
rapidly than the increasc in the numbcr of ads delivercd. If users incrcasingly
access Facebook mobile products as a substitute for access through personal
computers, and if we are unablc to successfully implement monetization
strategies for our mobile users, or if we incur excessive expenses in this effort,
our financial performance and ability to grow revenue would be negativcly
affected.

64.  Thc Rcgistration Statement and Prospectus also purported to warn investors
that the Company's revenues from advertising could be adversely affected by, among other -
things, the “increased user access to and engagement with facebook” through mobile devices.
In that regard, the Registration Statement and Prospectus stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

We generate a substantial majority of our revenue from advertising. The loss
of advertisers, or rednuction in speudiug by advertisers with Facebook, could
seriously hiarm our business.

The substantial majority of our revenue is currcntly generated from third
parties advertising on facebook. In 2009, 2010, and 201! and the first quarter of
201! and 2012, advertising accountcd for 98%, 95%, 85%, 87%, and 82%,
rcspectively, of our revenue. As is common in the industry, our advertisers
typically do not have long-term advertising commitments with us. Many of our

10
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| advertisers spend only a relatively small portion of their overall advertising
budget with us. In addition, advcrtisers may view some of our products, such as
2 sponsored stories and ads with social context, as experimental and unproven.
3 Advertisers will not continue to do business with us, or they will reduce the
prices they are willing to pay to advcrtise with us, if we do not dcliver ads and
4 other commcrcial content in an effective manner, or if they do not believe that
their investment in advertising with ns will generatc a competitive rctnrn
5 relative to other alternatives. Our advertising revcnue conld be advcersely
p affected by a nnmber of other factors, including:
' 7 . decreases in user cngagement, including time spent on facebook;
8 . increased user access to and engagement with facebook through our
mobile products, where we do not currently directly generate
9 meaningfull revenne, particularly to the extent that mobile engagement is
substituted for engagement with Facebook on personal computers where
10 we monetize nsage by displaying ads and other commercial content;
n J product changes or inventory management decisions we may make that
12 redice the size, frequency, or rclative prominence of ads and other
commercial content displayed on facebook;
13 A
. our inability to improve our analytics and measurement solntions that
14 demonstrate the value of our ads and other commcrcial content;
15 . decisions by advertiscrs to use onr free products, such as faccbook
16 Pages, instead of advertising on Facebook;
. loss of advertising market share to our competitors;
17 & P
18 J adverse legal dcvelopments rclating to advertising, including legislative
9 and regnlatory developments and dcvelopments in litigation;
20 J adverse media reports or other negative publicity involving us, our
Platform devclopers, or other companies in our industry;
21 e . .
. our inability to create new proditcts that sustain or increase the valne of
22 our ads and othcr commercial content;
23 . the degree to which users opt out of social ads or othcrwise limit the
" potential audience of commercial content;
25 . changes in the way online advertising is priced;
26 J the impact of new tcchnologies that conld block or obscure the display
of our ads and other commercial content; and
27
J the impact of macroeconomic conditions and conditions in the
28 advertising industry in general,
1]
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The occurrence of any of these or other factors could result in a
reduction in demand for our ads and other commercial content, which may
reduce the prices we receive for our ads and otlicr comiercial content, or causc
advertisers to stop advertising with us altogether, cither of which would
ncgatively affect our revenue and financial results.

65.  The statements referenced above in §§64-66 were untrue statements of material
fact. The true facts at the time of the IPO werc that Facebook was then experiencing a severe |
and pronounced reduction in revenuc growll due to an incrcase of users of its Facebook app or
wcbsite through mobile dcvices rather than a traditional PC such that the Company told the
Underwriter Defendants to materially lower their revenue forccasts for 2012. And, defendants
failed 1o disclose that during the roadshow conducted in connection with the IPO, certain of
the Underwriter Defendants reduced their second quarter and full year 2012 performance
estimates for Facebook, which revisions were matcrial information which was not shared with
all Facebook investors, but rather, was sclectively disclosed by dcfendants to certain preferred
investors and omitted from the Registration Statement and/or Prospectus.

66.  On May 19, 2012, in an article entitlcd “Morgan Stanley Was A Control-Frcak
On Facebook IPO - And It May Havc Royally Screwcd ltself,” Reuters reported that
“Facebook . . . altered its gnidance for research earnings last week, during the road sho'w, a
rare and disruptive move.”

67.  On May 22, 2012, in an articlc entitled “Insight: Morgan Stanlcy cut Facebook
estimalcs just before [PO,” Renters rcported that that Facebook’s lead underwriters, Morgan
Stanley, JP Morgan and Goldman Sachs, all cut their eamings forecasts for thc Company in
the middle of the IPO roadshow and that only a handful of pré ferred investor clients were told
the news of the reduction. In that regard, the article stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

In the run-up to Facebook’s $16 billion IPO, Morgan Stanlcy, the lead

underwritcr on the deal, unexpectcdly delivered some negative ncws (o major

clients: The bank’s consumer Intcrnet analyst, Scott Devitt, was reducing his
revenue forccasts for the company.
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The sudden caution very closc to the huge initial public offering, and
while an investor roadshow was underway, was a big shock to some, said two
investors who were advised of the revised forecast.

They say it may have contributed to the weak performance of Facebook
sharcs, which sank on Monday - their second day of trading - to end 10 percent
below the IPO price. The $38 per share IPO price valued Faccbook at $104
billion. '

The change in Morgan Stanley’s estimatcs camc on the heels of
Facebook’s filing of an amended prospectus with the U.S. Secwrities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), in which the company expressed caution about
revenue growth due to a rapid shift by users to mobile dcvices. Mobile
advertising to date is less lucrative than advertising on a desktop.

“This was donc during the roadshow - I’ve never seen that before in 10
ycars,” said a source al a mutual fund firm who was among thosc called by
Morgan Stanley.

JPMorgan Chase and Goldman Sachs, which were also major
underwriters on the IPO but had Icsscr rolcs than Morgan Stanley, also revised
their cstimates in response to Facebook's May 9 SEC filing, according to
sources familiar with the situation.

Morgan Stanley declined to comment and Devitt did not return a phone
message seeking comment. JPMorgan and Goldman both declined to comment.

Typically, the underwriter of an IPO wants to paint as positive a picture
as possible for prospective investors. Investment bank analysts, on the other
hand, are rcquired to operate indcpendently of the bankers and salcsmen who
are marketing stocks - that was stipulated in a settlement by major banks with
regulators following a scandal over tainted stock rescarch during the dotcom
boom.

The people familiar with the revised Morgan Stanley projcctions said
Devitt cut his revenue estimate for the cwirent second quarter significantly, and
also cut his full-year 2012 revenue forecast. Dcvitt’s precise estimates could not
be immediately verified.

“That deceleration freaked a lot of people out,” satd one of the investors.

Scott Swect, scnior managing partner at the research firm PO Boutique,
said he was also aware of the reduced estimates.

“They definitely lowered their numbers and there was some concern
about that,” he said. “My biggcst hedge fund client told mc they lowered their
numbers right around mid-roadshow.”

Class Action Complaint




w

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

O 00 9 N S

“ J

That client, he said, still bought the issue but “flipped his IPO allocation
and went short on the first day.”

“VERY UNUSUAL”

Sweet said analysts at firms that are not underwriting IPOs often changc
forecasts at such times. Iowever, he said it is unusual- for analysts at lead
underwriters to make such changes so close to the IPO.

“That would be very, very unusuai for a book runner to do that,” he
said.

The lower revenue projection came shortly before the IPO was priced at
$38 a share, the high end of an already upwardly reviscd projected range of
$34-338, and beforc Faccbook increased the number of shares being sold by 25
percent.

The much-anticipated [PO has pcrformed far below expectations, with
the shares barely staying above the $38 offer price on their Friday debut and
then plunging on Monday.

Companies do not make their own financial forecasts prior 10 an 1PO,
and underwriters are generally barred from issuing recommendations on the
stock until 40 days after it begins trading. Analysts often rely on guidance from
the company in building their forccasts, but companics doing IPOs are not
permitted to give out matertal information that is not available to all investors.

Institutions and major clients gencrally enjoy quick access to investment
bank research, while retail clients in many cases only get it later. It is unclear
whether Morgan Stanley only told its top clients about the revised view or
spread the word more broadly. The firm declined to comment when asked who
was told about the research.

“It’s very rarc to cut forecasts in the middlc of the IPO process,” said an
official with a hedge fund firm who reccived a call from Morgan Stanley about
the revision.

68.  As of the date of the filing of this complaint, the 421 million sharcs of
Facebook common stock sold in the IPO are trading at approximately $31 per share, or $7 per
share below the price where plaintiff and the Class purchased $16 billion worth of Facebook
stock while defendants pocketed billions of dollars. Plaintiff and the Class have suffered

losses of more than $2.5 billion since the 1PO.
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FIRST CLAIM
Violation of Section 11 of The Sccurities Act
{Against All Defendants)

69.  Plaintiff rcpeats and rcallcges cach and every allegation contained above,
except any allegation of fraud, recklessness or intentional misconduct.

70.  This Count is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, |5 U.S.C.
§77k, on behalf of the Class, against all Defendants.

71.  The Registration Statement for thc 1IPO was inaccurate and misleading,
contained untrue statements of material facts, omitted to state other facts necessary to make the
statements made not misleading, and ornitted to state material facts requircd to be stated therin.

72.  Facebook is the rcgistrant for the IPO. The Defendants named herein were
responsible for the contents and dissemination of the Registration Statcment.

73.  As issuer of the shares, FFacebook is strictly liable to plaintiff and the Class for
the misstatements and oinissions.

74.  None of the Defendants named herein madc a rcasonable investigation or
possessed rcasonable grounds for the belicf that the statements contained in the Registration
Statement were true and without omissions of any material facts and wcrc not misleading.

75. By rcasons of the conduct hercin alleged, each Defendant violated, and/or
controlled a person who violated Section 11 of the Securities Act.

76.  Plaintiff acquired Facebook shares pursuant and/or traceable to the Registration
Statement for the 1PO.

77.  Plaintiff and the Class havc sustained damages. The value of Facebook

common stock has declined substantially subscquent to and due to Defendants’ violations.

15
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SECOND CLAIM
Violation of Scction 15 of The Sccurities Act
(Against the Individual Dcfendants)

78.  Plaintiff rcpeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above,
except any atlegation of fraud, recklessness or intentional conduct.

79.  This count is asserted against the Individual Defendants and is based upon
Section 15 of the Securities Act.

80.  Individual Defendants, by virtue of their offices, directorship.and specific acts
were, at the time of the wrongs alleged herein and as set forth herein, controlling persons of
Facebook within the meaning of Section 15 of the Sccurities Act. The Individual Defendants
had the power and influence and exercised thc same to cause Faccbook to engage in the acts
described herein. |

81.  Individual Defendants’ positions made them privy to and provided them with
actual knowledge of the material facts concealed from Plaintiff and the Class.

82. By virtue of the conduct alleged hercin, the Individual Defendants are liable for
the aforesaid wrongful conduct and are liable to Plaintiff and thc Class for damageé suffered.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief and judgment as follows:

(a)  Determining that this action is a proper class action under California Code of

- Civil Procedure Secction 382;

(b)  Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and scverally, for all damagcs sustained as a result of
Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon;

(¢)  Awarding plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurrcd in
this action, including counsel fees and expcrt fees;

(d)  Awarding rescission or a rescissory measure of damages; and

10
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(¢)  Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

—

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.

Respectfully Submittcd,
Dated: May 23, 2012 JOHNSON & WEAVER, LLP

= - . V. I L S D O

FRAN%IOHNSON 7

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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U Superior Court of CalifMa
County of San Mateo
Civil Department

400 County Center

Redwood City, CA 94063-1655

(650)363-4599

www.sanmateocourt.org
Enwgﬁ?n{igi}gﬁmv | Notice of Complex Case Status Conference
VS. Case No.: CIV 514172 Date: 08/07/12
FACEBOOK INC _
Defendant(s) Time: 9:00 AM
Dept. 3
Title: EDWARD H SHIERRY VS FACEBOOK INC

You are hereby given notice of your Complex Case Status Conference. The date, time and department have
been written above. At this conference, the Presiding Judge will decide whether this action is a complex case
within the meaning of California Rules of Court (“CRC"), Rule 3.400, subdivision (a) and whether it should be
assigned to a single judge for all purposes.

1. In accordance with applicable San Mateo County Local Rule 2.30, you are hereby ordered to:

a. Serve copies of this notice, your Civil Case Cover Sheet, and your Certificate Re: Complex
Case Designation on all named parties in this action no later than service of your first
appearance pleadings.

b. Give reasonable notice of the Complex Case Status Conference to all named parties in this
action, even if they have not yet made a first appearance or been formally served with the
documents listed in subdivision (). Such notice shall be given in the same manner as required
for an ex parte application pursuant to CRC 3.1203.

2. If you fail to follow the orders above, you are ordered to show cause why you should not be
sanctioned. The Order To Show Cause hearing will be at the same time as the Complex Case
Status Conference. Sanctions may include monetary, evidentiary or Issue sanctions as well as
striking pleadings and/or dismissal.

3. Anaction is provisionally a complex case if it involves one or more of the following types of claims: (1)
antitrust or trade regulation claims; (2) construction defect claims involving many parties or structures; (3)
securities claims or investment losses involving many parties; (4) environmental or toxic tort claims involving
many parties; (5) claims involving massive torts; (6) claims involving class actions; or (7) insurance coverage
claims arising out of any of the claims listed in subdivisions (1) through (6). The Court shall treat a
provisionally complex action as a complex case until the Presiding Judge has the opportunity to decide whether
the action meets the definition in CRC 3.400(a).

4. Any party who files either a Civil Case Cover Sheet (pursuant to CRC 3.401) or a counter or joinder Civil
Case Cover Sheet (pursuant to CRC 3.402, subdivision (b) or (c)), designating an action as a complex case in
Items 1, 2 and/or 5, must also file an accompanying Certificate Re: Complex Case Designation in the form
prescribed by the Court. The certificate must include supporting information showing a reasonable basis for the
complex case designation being sought. Such supporting information may include, without limitation, a brief
description of the following factors as they pertain to the particular action: (1) management of a large number of

Form: CCSC



separately represented parties; (2Rggiplexity of anticipated factual and/or legal US; (3) numerous pretrial
motions that will be time-consuming to resolve; (4) management of a large number of witnesses or a substantial
amount of documentary evidence; (5) coordination with related actions pending in one or more courts in other
counties, states or countries or in a federal court; (6) whether or not certification of a putative class action will in
fact be pursued; and (7) substantial post-judgment judicial supervision.

For further information regarding case management policies and procedures, see the court website at

WWW sanmateocourt.org

* Telephonic appearances at Complex Case Status Conference are available by contacting CourtCall, LLC, an
independent vendor, at least 5 business days prior to the scheduled conference.

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that I am the clerk of this Court, not a party to this cause; that I served a copy of this
notice on the below date, by placing a copy thereof in separate sealed envelopes addressed to the
address shown by the records of this Court, and by then sealing said envelopes and depositing same,
with postage fully pre-paid thereon, in the United States Mail at Redwood City, California.

Date: 06/08/12 John C. Fitton,
Court Executive Officer/Clerk
‘By:REBECCA KRILL
Deputy Clerk
Copies mailed to:

FRANK J JOHNSON
110 WEST A ST. #750
SAN DIEGO CA 92101

Form: CCSC



NOTICE OF CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE

~ ENDORSEDFILED
Fduwad 5. shem [SANMATEO COUNTY.,e o GIV 5 1417 2

MAY 235 2012 Date: Z'c 2 Z:’EZ @

vs.
:ly"k?' me'%mmme: 9:00 a.m.

- . Dept. fonTuesday & Thursda
Dept. /-on Wednesda

You arc.hereby given notice of your Case Managemeni Conference. The date, tne and department have been wniien
above.

1 Inaccordance with applicable Califorma Rules of Court and Local Rules 2.3(d)1-4 and 2.3(m), you are hereby
ordered to: ‘

9. Serve all named defendants and file proofs of service on those defendants with the court within 60 days
of filing the complaint (CRC 2017). -

b. Serve a copy of this nolice, Case Management Statement and ADR Information Sheet on all named
parties in this action.

c. File and serve a completed Case Managemient Statement at Jeast 15 days before the Case Management
Conference {CRC 212(g)}. Failure to do so may result 1n monetary sanctions.

d. Meet and confer, 1n person or by telephone, to constder each of the issues 1dentified sn CRC 212(f) no
later than 30 days before the date set for the Case Management Conference.

2. If you fail to follow the orders above, you are ordered (o show cause why you should not be sanctioned, The
Order To Show Cause hearing will be at the same time as the Case Management Conference hearing.
Sanctions may include monetary, evidentiary or issue sanctions a5 well as striking pleadings and/or
dismissal.

3. Continvances of case management conferences are highly disfavored unless good cause 1s shown.
4. Parties may proceed o an appropnate dispute resolution process (“ADR”) by filing a Stipulation To ADR
and Proposed Order (see attached form.). If plamnufT files a Stipulation To ADR and Proposed Order electing to
proceed to judicial arbitration, the Case Management Conference will be taken off the court calendar and the
case will be referred to the Arbiration Admmistrator. If plaintiffs and defendants file a completed stipulation to
another ADR process (e.g., mediation) 10 days pnor to the first scheduled case management conference, the
casc management conference will be continved for 90 days to allow parties tine to complete thew ADR session.
The court wil} notfy parties of their new case management conference date.
5.1 you have filed a default or a judgment has been entered, your case is not automatically taken off the Case
Management Conference Calendar. 1f “Does”, “Roes”, etc. are named i your complainl, they must be
disrrussed in order to close the case. 1f any party 15 in bankruptcy, the case 1s stayed only as (o that named party.
6. You are further ordered (o appear in person* (or through your atforney of record) at the Case Management Conlerence
notrced above. You must be thoroughly familiar with the case and fully suthonzed to proceed.
7 The Case Management judge will issue orders at the conclusion of the conference that may wnclude:
a. Refemng partics to voluntazy ADR and setting an ADR completion date;
b. Dismussing or sevenng claims or parties;
c. Sethng a tnal date.

8. The Case Management judge may be the tnal judge in this case.

For further information regarding case management policies and procedures, see the court websste at
www.sanmateocourt.org.

v Telephonic appearances at cas€ managemenl conferences are available by contacting CourtCall, LLC, an independent
vendor, al least 5 business days pnor to the scheduled conference (see attached CourtCall information).
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Certificate Re Complex Case Designation

Case Number

CW- §|-th72a<

This certificate must be completed and filed with your Civil Case Cover Sheet if
you have checked a Complex Case designation or Counter-Designation

1. In the attached Civil Case Cover Sheet, this case is being designated or counter-designated
as a complex case [or as not a complex case] because at least one or more of the following

boxes has been checked:

’Box 1 — Case type that is best described as as being [or not being] provisionally
complex civil litigation (i.e., antitrust or trade regulation claims, construction
defect claims involving many parties or structures, securities claims or investment
losses involving many parties, environmental or toxic tort claims involving many
parties, claims involving mass torts, or insurance coverage claims arising out of

any of the foregoing claims).

Box 2 — Complex [or not complex] due to factors requiring exceptional judicial

management
Box 5 —Is [or is not] a class action suit.

2. This case is being so designated based upon the following supporting information
[including, without limitation, a brief description of the following factors as they pertain to
this particular case: (1) management of a large number of separately represented parties;
(2) complexity of antlcipated factual and/or legal issues;(3).numerous pretrial motions
that will be time-consuming to resolve; (4) management of a large number of witnesses or
a substantial amount of documentary evidence; (5) coordination with related actions
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pending in one or more courts in other counties, states or countries or in a federal court;
hether or not certification of a putative class action will in fact be pursued; and (7)
substantial post-judgment judicial supervision]:

YIS ale Wy a mwﬁcgjﬁ' nhembker of named
ddandans  whign  uall 2 werciata 1y W&
\aw Beons .+ (B) Caonnal  eXPeet sevevald WW NEHO
WA oW . (5) Cvniel eyt s\mlar aoe o
e Aud 1N et pwidissans . () TTWis
W ADGES Abon and  cante{  plans Av el
CONTREGITON .

(attach additional pages if necessary)

3.  Based on the above-stated supporting information, there is a reasonable basis for the complex
case designation or counter-designation {or noncomplex case counter-designation] being made
in the attached Civil Case Cover Sheet.

sEE%s

I, the undersigned counsel or self-represented party, hereby certify that the above is true and correct
and that I make this certification subject to the applicable provisions of California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 128.7 and/or California Rules of Professional Conduct, Rule 5-200 (B) and San
Mateo County Superior Court Local Rules, Local Rule 2.30.

Dated: 5} Bq/ \ ;\
Fank Tohnsmn

[Type or Print Name} [Signature offarty or Atto?'€y For Party}]
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FRANK J. JOHNSON, ESQ, (SBN ¥74862) FILED

*JOHNSON & WEAVER, LLP
110 WEST A STREET, SUITE 750 SAN MATEQ COUNTY

SAN DIEGO CA 92101
619-230-0063 Ret. No. : 0874310-01

Attorney for : EDWARD J. SHIERRY Atty. File No.: EDWARD J. SHIERRY

SUPERIOR COURT OF CA., COUNTY OF SAN MATEO
SOUTHERN BRANCH (CIVIL UNLIMITED) JUDICIAL DISTRICT

/\ PLAINTIFF : EDWARD J. SHIERRY Case No.: CIV 514172
ﬂ‘)} DEFENDANT : FACEBOOK, INC., ET AL. PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS
1.  Atthe time of service | was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action.
2. |served copies of the SUMMONS; COMPLAINT,; CiVIL CASE COVER SHEET; NOTICE OF CASE
MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE
3. a Padyserved :  FACEBOOK, INC.
AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS; CSC LAWYERS INCORPORATING SYSTEMS
b. Person served : BECKY DEGEORGE, PROCESS SPECIALIST

(AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR CSC LAWYERS INC.)

4. Address where the party was served 2710 N GATEWAY OAKS DRIVE SUITE 150
SACRAMENTO, CA- 95833

5. |served the party
a. by personal service. | personally delivered the documents listed In item 2 to the party or person authorized to

recelve service of process for the party (1) on May 28,2012 (2) at: 01:55PM’

6. The “Notice to the person served® (on the summons) was completed as follows:
¢. on behalf of: FACEBOOQXK, INC. .
AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS; CSC LAWYERS INCORPORATING SYSTEMS
under [xx] CCP 416.10 (corporation)

7. Person who served papers

(i) County: YOLO, CA

a. JOHN D. HOUSTON d. Fee for service: $43.75
b. KNOX ATTORNEY SERVICE e. lam:
2250 FOURTH AVENUE (3) aregistered Califomia process server
' SAN DIEGO, CA 92101 (i) anindependent contractor -
c. 619-233-9700 (i) Registration No.: 508
3

8. |declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing Is true and correct.

Date: May 30, 2012
Signature:

N D. HOUSTO
Jud. Coun. form, ruie 2.150 CRC

JC Form POS 010 (Rev. January 1, 2007) _ PROOF OF SER¥ICE
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO

DARRYL LAZAR, Individually and On Behalf
of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M.
SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER,
DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS,
PETER A. THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY &
CO. LLC, J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC,
GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., MERRILL
LYNCH, PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH
INCORPORATED, BARCLAYS CAPITAL
INC,, ALLEN & COMPANY LLC,
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC,,
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (USA) LLC,
DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC., RBC
CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC, BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO CAPITAL
MARKETS CORP., C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK
SECURITIES, L.P., COWEN AND
COMPANY, LLC., E*TRADE SECURITIES
LLC, ITAU BBA USA SECURITIES, INC.,
LAZARD CAPITAL MARKETS LLC,
LEBENTHAL & CO., LLC, LOOP CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL & COMPANY,
MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC,,
MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS* MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

Lead Case No. CIV514065
CAVSIY T

mm ORDER GRANTING

PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION TO
CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED
ACTIONS
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OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC,, PACIFIC
CREST SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY
& CO., RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES,
INC., SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY,
INC., STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS
CAPITAL GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM
BLAIR & COMPANY, L.L.C,,

Defendants.

JENNIFER STOKES , Individually and On
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M.
SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER,
DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS,
PETER A. THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO.
LLC, J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC,
GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., MERRILL
LYNCH, PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH
INCORPORATED, BARCLAYS CAPITAL
INC., ALLEN & COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP
GLOBAL MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK
SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS,
LLC, BLAYLOCK ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO
CAPITAL MARKETS CORP., C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES,
L.P., COWEN AND COMPANY, LLC.,
E*TRADE SECURITIES LLC, ITAU BBA USA
SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBENTHAL & CO., LLC,
LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL
& COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA)
INC., MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,
OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC., PACIFIC CREST
SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY & CO.,
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC.,
SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC.,
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL
GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR &

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

Case No. CIV514107
Date Filed: May 23, 2012

T Py
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COMPANY ,L.LC,
Defendants.

MATTHEW PILGRAM, Individually and On
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M.
SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER,
DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS,
PETER A. THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO.
LLC,BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., ALLEN &
COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK
SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS,
LLC, BLAYLOCK ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO
CAPITAL MARKETS CORP., C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES,
L.P., COWEN AND COMPANY, LLC.,
E*TRADE SECURITIES LLC, ITAU BBA USA
SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBENTHAL & CO., LLC,
LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL
& COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA)
INC., MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,

OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC., PACIFIC CREST -

SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY & CO.,
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC,,
SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC.,,
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL
GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR &
COMPANY, LL.C,

Defendants.

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

Case No. CIV514111
Date Filed: May 23, 2012
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VERNON R. DeMOIS JR., Individually and on
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,
Plaintiff

V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M. SPILLANE,
MARC L. ANDREESSEN, ERSKINE B.
BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALDE.
GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEL, AND MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC.

Defendants.

ELBITA ALFONSO, Individually and on Behalf
of All Others Similarly Situated,
Plaintiff]

v.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M., SPILLANE,
MARC L. ANDREESSEN, ERSKINE B.
BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALD E.
GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, J.P.
MORGAN SECURITIES LLC, GOLDMAN,
SACHS & CO., MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE,
FENNER & SMITH INCORPORATED,
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., ALLEN &
COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC.C, REDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK
SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS,
LLC, and WELLS FARGO SECURITIES, LLC,

Defendants.

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLMmS’ MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

Case No. CIV514163
Date Filed: May 25, 2012

Case No. CIV514171
Date Filed: May 25, 2012
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EDWARD J. SHIERRY, Individually and On
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID E. EBERSMAN, DAVID M.
SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER,
DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS,
PETER A. THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO.
LLC, GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO,,
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., ALLEN &
COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE
BANK SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, BLAYLOCK

ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO CAPITAL
MARKETS CORP., C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES,
L.P, COWEN AND COMPANY, LLC,,
E*TRADE SECURITIES, LLC, ITAU

BBA USA SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD
CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, LEBENTHAL &
CO., LLC, LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC,
M.R. BEAL & COMPANY, MACQUARIE
CAPITAL(USA) INC., MURIEL SIEBERT &
CO., INC., OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC,,
PACIFIC CREST SECURITIES LLC,

PIPER JAFFRA Y & CO., RAYMOND JAMES
& ASSOCIATES, INC., SAMUEL

A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC,, STIFEL,
NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATED,
THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL GROUP, L.P.,, and
WILLIAM BLAIR & COMPANY, L.LC,,

Defendants.

MICHAEL LIEBER, Individually and On Behalf
of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,

v

Case No. CIV514172
Date Filed: May 25, 2012

Case No. CIV514193
Date Filed: May 29, 2012

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS




.

e o 3 N W W N

NN N DN N N N N N e e et ot b gt bt bk bk b
K N N N A W N = OY 00 N W B W N =D

FACEBOOK INC.; MARK
ZUCKERBURG; DONALD E. GRAHAM;
DAVID A. EBERSMAN; JAMES W.
BREYER; DAVID M. SPILLANE; PETER
A. THIEL; MARC L. ANDREESSEN;
REED HASTINGS; ERSKINE B. BOWLES;
MORGAN STANLEY & CO.

LLC; J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC;
GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.; MERRILL
LYNCH,; E *TRADE SECURITIES LLC;
OPPENHEIMER & CO., INC.;
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC,; .
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.;
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (USA)
LLC; PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH
INCORPORATED; ALLEN &
FACEBOOK LLC; DEUTSCHE BANK
SECURITIES INC.; RBC CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC; MURIEL SIEBERT & CO.,
INC.; CABRERA CAPITAL

MARKETS, LLC; BMO CAPITAL
MARKETS CORP.; CASTLECAK
SECURITIES, LP.; LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC; PACIFIC CREST
SECURITIES LLC; LOOP CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC; ITAU BBA USA’
SECURITIES, INC.;W ILLIAM BLAIR &
FACEBOOK, L.L.C.; BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LLC; LEBENTHAL & CO.
LLC; M.R. BEAL & FACEBOOK;
MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC.;
PIPER JAFFRAY & CO.; COWEN AND
FACEBOOK, LLC; RAYMOND JAMES
ASSOCIATES, INC.; STIFEL,
NICOLAUS & FACEBOOK,
INCORPORATED; C.L.KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC.; SAMUEL A,
RAMIREZ & FACEBOOK, INC.; COWEN
AND FACEBOOK, LLC; THE WILLIAMS
CAPITAL GROUP, LP; and Does 1
through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS
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KAREN CUKER and BRIAN GRALNICK,
Individually and On Behalf of All Others Similarly
Situated,

Plaintiffs,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M. SPILLANE,
MARC L. ANDREESSEN, ERSKINE B.
BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALDE.
GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, J.P.
MORGAN SECURITIES LLC, GOLDMAN,
SACHS & CO., MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE,
FENNER & SMITH INCORPORATED,
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., ALLEN &
COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK

SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS,

LLC, WELLS FARGO SECURITIES, LLC,
BLAYLOCK ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO
CAPITAL MARKETS CORP., C.L.KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES,
L.P., COWEN AND COMPANY, LLC,,
E"‘TRADE SECURITIES LLC, ITAU BBA USA
SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBBNTHAL & CO, LLC,
LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M R. BEAL
& COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA)
INC., MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,
OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC,, PACIFIC CREST
SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY & CO,,
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC,,
SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC,,
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL
GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR &
COMPANY,LL.C,

Defendants.

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

Case No. CIV514238
Date Filed: May 30, 2012
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HARVEY LAPIN, Individually and On Behalf of
All Others Similarly Situated, -

Plaintiff,
V.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVID M. SPILLANE,
MARC L. ANDREESSEN, ERSKINE B.
BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER, DONALD E.
GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS, PETER A.
THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, J.P.
MORGAN SECURITIES LLC, GOLDMAN,
SACHS & CO., MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE,
FENNER & SMITH INCORPORATED,
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., ALLEN &
COMPANY LLC, CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS INC., CREDIT SUISSE
SECURITIES (USA) LLC, DEUTSCHE BANK
SECURITIES INC., RBC CAPITAL MARKETS,
LLC, BLAYLOCK ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO
CAPITAL MARKETS CORP., C.L.KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK SECURITIES,
L.P., COWEN AND COMPANY, LLC.,
E*TRADE SECURITIES LLC, ITAU BBA USA
SECURITIES, INC., LAZARD CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, LEBENTHAL & CO,, LLC,
LOOP CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL
& COMPANY, MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA)
INC., MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,
OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC., PACIFIC CREST
SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY & CO.,
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC.,
SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY, INC.,
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS CAPITAL
GROUP, L.P., and WILLIAM BLAIR &
COMPANY, L.L.C.,

Defendants.

Case No. CIV514240
Date Filed: May 30, 2012

{PROPOSED} ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

S ta e m twase
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Upon Plaintiffs Darryl Lazar, Jennifer Stokes, Matthew Pilgram, Vernon R. Demois Jr.,
Elbita Alfonso, Edward J. Shierry, Michael Lieber, Karen Cuker, Brian Gralnick and Harvey
Lapin (collectively "Movants") Ex Parte Application for Approval of Consolidation of Related
Cases and Appointment of Co-Lead Class Counsel, or Alternatively, for an Order Shortening
Time for Hearing Such Motion, and following consideration of the relevant papers and
arguments of counsel, and good cause appearing:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that:

The following actions are hereby consolidated for all purposes, including pretrial
proceedings and trial, pursuant to Section 1048 of the California Code of Civil Procedure:;

m Inc. et al., %?% Mna;%%2
Jennifer Stokes v. Facebook, Inc. et al CIV514107 May 23, 2012
Matthew Pilgram v. Facebook, Inc. et al CIVSi41il May 23, 2012
Zezgon R. DeMois, Jr., v. Facebook, Inc., CIV514163 May 25, 2012
Elbita Alfonso, v. Facebook, Inc., et a!, CIVs514171 May 25, 2012
Edward J, Shierry, v. Facebook, Inc., et al. CIV514172 May 25, 2012
Michael Lieber v. Facebook, Inc., et al. CIV514193 May 29, 2012
Karen Cuker and Brian Gralnick v. CIV514238 May 30, 2012
Facebook, Inc., et al.

Harvey Lapin v. Facebook, Inc., et al. CIV514240 May 30, 2012

Counsel shall promptly notify the Court of any new related cases filed before this Court
and if counsel wish to consolidaie such cases, they shall file and serve an appropriate motion or
application.

Every pleading filed in these consolidated actions, or in any separate action included
herein, shall bear the following caption:

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS
1
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DARRYL LAZAR, Individually and On Behalf
of All Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,
v.

FACEBOOK, INC., MARK ZUCKERBERG,
DAVID A. EBERSMAN, DAVIDM. -
SPILLANE, MARC L. ANDREESSEN,
ERSKINE B. BOWLES, JAMES W. BREYER,
DONALD E. GRAHAM, REED HASTINGS,
PETER A. THIEL, MORGAN STANLEY &
CO. LLC, J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC,
GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., MERRILL
LYNCH, PIERCE, FENNER & SMITH
INCORPORATED, BARCLAYS CAPITAL
INC., ALLEN & COMPANY LLC,
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.,
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (USA) LLC,
DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC., RBC
CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC, BLAYLOCK
ROBERT VAN LLC, BMO CAPITAL
MARKETS CORP.,, C.L. KING &
ASSOCIATES, INC., CABRERA CAPITAL
MARKETS, LLC, CASTLEOAK
SECURITIES, L.P., COWEN AND
COMPANY, LLC., E*TRADE SECURITIES
LLC, ITAU BBA USA SECURITIES, INC,,
LAZARD CAPITAL MARKETS LLC,
LEBENTHAL & CO., LLC, LOOP CAPITAL
MARKETS LLC, M.R. BEAL & COMPANY,
MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC.,
MURIEL SIEBERT & CO., INC.,
OPPENHEIMER & CO. INC., PACIFIC
CREST SECURITIES LLC, PIPER JAFFRAY
& CO., RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES,
INC., SAMUEL A. RAMIREZ & COMPANY,
INC., STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY,
INCORPORATED, THE WILLIAMS
CAPITAL GROUP, L.P,, and WILLIAM
BLAIR & COMPANY, L.L.C.,

Defendants.

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS® MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS

2

" Lead Case No. CIV514065

{Consolidated with Case Nos:
CIV514107, CIV514111,
CIV514163, CIV514171,
CIV3514172, CIV514193,
CIV514238, CIV514240)

CLASS ACTION
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The files of these consolidated actions shall be maintained in one file under Lead Case
No. CIV514065.

This Order shall apply to each case, arising out of the same or substantially the same
transactions or events as these cases, which is subsequently filed in, removed to or transferred to
this Court, including cases transferred to this Court.

When a case which properly belongs as part of Darryl Lazar v. Facebook, Inc. et al.,
Lead Case No. CIV514065, is hereafter filed in the Court or transfecred here from another cout,
this Court requests the assistance of counsel in calling to the attention of the Clerk of the Court
the filing or transfer of any case which might properly be ‘consolidated as part of the lead case,
and counsel ave to assist in assuring that counsel in subsequent actions receive notice of this
Order.

JUN 14 2022
DATED:

[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE ALL RELATED ACTIONS
3




